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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 3.4% to HK$1,946.0 million (2014: HK$2,015.4
million) and the consolidated net profit decreased by 15.6% to
HK$70.5 million (2014: HK$83.5 million). Basic earnings per share
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 was HK21.0 cents
(2014: HK24.9 cents). The Board of Directors has resolved to
recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting the payment
of a final dividend of HK7.5 cents (2014: HK8.0 cents) per share for
the year ended 31 March 2015. Together with the interim dividend of
HK2.5 cents per share paid in January this year (2014: HK2.5 cents),
the total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 will be HK10.0
cents per share (2014: HK10.5 cents).

Business Review

The Group is engaged in design and manufacturing of a wide range
of household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, sales turnover decreased due to
slow recovery in the economies, weakened global market demand
and fierce competition in the household of electrical appliance
industry. The weak Euro and Japanese Yen also put pressure on
the selling prices to our European and Japanese customers. Labour
wages and manufacturing operating costs in the PRC continue to
rise which eroded the gross profit margin and net profit margin. On
top of this, customers place last minute orders to minimize their
inventory level risks. This has made our production planning and
workforce planning extremely difficult. The shortage of skilled labour
had resulted in an increase in overtime working charges which
placed further pressure on the margins.
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Chairman’s Statement

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 3.4% to
HK$1,946.0 million. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by 3.2% to
HK$988.6 million representing 50.8% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 10.0% to HK$466.5 million
representing 24.0% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
America increased by 5.4% to HK$404.5 million representing 20.8%
of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to other markets
decreased by 5.5% to HK$86.5 million representing 4.4% of the
Group’s sales turnover.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 decreased by 9.5%
to HK$221.3 million. Gross profit margin decreased from 12.1%
to 11.4%. The drop in gross profit was mainly attributed by the
increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC.

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 2.2%
to HK$34.6 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling and
distribution expenses was maintained at 1.8% compared to last
year. Administration expenses increased by 4.2% to HK$144.0
million. As a percentage to sales turnover, administration expenses
increased from 6.9% to 7.4% compared to last year.

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$248.0 million at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$218.0
million) giving rise to an increase in fair value of HK$30.0 million in
the income statement.

Net profit for the year decreased by 15.6% to HK$70.5 million
(2014: HK$83.5 million). Net profit margin decreased from 4.1% to
3.6% compared to last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Prospects

[t has become immensely difficult to project into the future under
the current set of economic and political conditions. Business
environment remains difficult, unpredictable and highly competitive.
We believe the labour wages and manufacturing operating costs in
the PRC would continue to rise. To offset this rise in costs, our prime
objective is to increase productivity and efficiency through further
automation and manufacturing process improvements. We continue
to seek growth opportunities through new customers and new
product categories. We would also increase our R&D activities to
provide unique and innovative platforms for our products. Stringent
cost and expense control, productivity efficiency improvements,
persistence in quality products and product mix optimization would
continue to be our top priorities.

With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, healthy financial
conditions and commitment to excel, we are confident that we
would sail through the challenges and uncertainties ahead of us in
the coming future.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total assets of HK$1,643.8
million (2014: HK$1,726.8 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$503.8 million (2014: HK$602.0 million), long-term
liabilities and deferred taxation of HK$64.6 milion (2014: HK$77.6
million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,075.5 million (2014:
HK$1,047.2 million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2015, the Group held
HK$405.6 million (2014: HK$537.7 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Group generated net cash outflow from
operating activities of HK$32.7 million (2014: inflow HK$277.5
million) due to decrease in operating profit and higher working capital
employed compared with the previous year. As at the same date,
total borrowings were HK$78.1 million (2014: HK$111.9 million) and
the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ equity)
was 7.3% (2014: 10.7%).
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Chairman’s Statement

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2015 increased from
HK$100.3 million to HK$103.7 million. The trade receivables and bill
receivables balance as at 31 March 2015 increased from HK$380.2
million to HK$400.0 million. The trade payables balance as at 31
March 2015 decreased from HK$301.8 million to HK$262.6 million.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and
available banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March, 2015,
the group invested HK$35.0 million (2014: HK$21.1 million) in
plant and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer
systems and other tangible assets for expansion and upgrade
to our manufacturing facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures
were funded by internal resources and bank loans. The capital
expenditure budget for 2015/16 is approximately HK$41.4 million.
With a healthy financial position and available banking facilities, the
Group is able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. Currently the Group does
not implement hedging activity to hedge against foreign currency
exposure. However, we will closely monitor foreign currency
exposure and consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

Currently, the Group employs approximately 4,700 employees. The
majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group remunerated
our employees based on their performances, experiences and
prevailing market rates while performance bonuses are granted
on a discretionary basis. Share options may also be granted to
employees based on individual performance and attainment of
certain set targets.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 87, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 50 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 54, is the Managing Director of the Group.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of London, England. He is responsible for the sales & marketing,
research & development and engineering functions of the Group.
He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic planning and
development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 57, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the overall
manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 52, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from
the University of London, England and a master degree in Business
Management from the City University, England. She is responsible
for the financial and administration functions of the Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 67, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 45 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Lo Chung Mau, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Head of Department of
Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 55, is the Director of Cost
Innovation. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group
in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the
University of Wales, England. He is responsible for the purchasing
and sourcing function of the Group.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 50, is the Director of Research
and Development. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing Science and
a MSc degree in Management Science, both at Imperial College
London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation from the
University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers. He is in charge of product research and development,
and also management of intellectual property/patent application.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 52, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 47, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 56, is the Director of Manufacturing. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has over 30 years of experience in
manufacturing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continuea)

Li Wai Ho, aged 51, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 48, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 59, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 53, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 52, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 53, is the Marketing Manager. He joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in marketing of
electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the Group’s sales
& marketing functions for Pacific Region (including America and
Japan).
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 34.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$8,386,000 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK7.5 cents per share to the shareholders on
the register of members on 1 September 2015, amounting to
approximately HK$25,157,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:
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E e

FR-REBIRMHEREFR2.581 - A
R B 2 sREE4) 28,386,000 - EE &
EhEFRNRAREER7SBWT=F
—AFAA—BBIRELMARE - BIL
25,157,000/ 7T S AR B 82 T ) £

TEEFRHEER

AEESAREALREFPZBEENMHE
BTGB

Purchases BEE
— the largest supplier —mAHER 16%
— five largest suppliers combined —REREEEEET 30%
Sales iH & 2R
— the largest customer — & AEE 38%
— five largest customers combined —REKRKEEAG 94%
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers (continued)

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 128 of the
annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2015
were HK$104,131,000 (2014: HK$129,575,000).
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Directors’ Report

Investment Properties

Details of the movement of investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$35 million on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to expand
and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Cheung
Lai Chun, Maggie and Professor Lo Chung Mau shall retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EEEHE

REW=

AEBZRENEEHFRENGEEY
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TR AKEEE) A #35,000,0008 TTRE D
¥ BEMERBBABEERRESEAERM-
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&
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5 ff 5T £
REIRELE
REP XL
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REHEEL
RAEREE
EREXHER
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TR ERERERET-
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R/

EBRRBEFASHREETZAATNES
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2015, the interests of the directors and chief executives

of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8

of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which

they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the

SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

EEEHE

EERTETHRAERKRAD
HER D - EREE R R

i3

x

R-_E—RHFE=ZA=+—8" ZIK
FETHRABRARRIRE
ERE %&Hﬂ,éiﬂﬂﬂﬂj:*% 17%1
FEXVER) By 15 $H?%foﬁ&1ﬂé RER
BRIBESF LA BRAIEXVHBETRESD EB
BMEARRRREBBRERHFIER QA
([BRFr]) iR IA R (BEREREE
HFREEGO 2 ZEFEXEBREIRRE
EZERIAR) U BR AR TIREFH
KB E& B E35216BE T 2 Bt ey
mIAR KRB LETRAREFTETESR
SEEFR| ([BEFR]) 2 REEMER
NE R R ERESOABINT

ERS
A (
g

};L\)
D) ul]
H}>‘<ﬂ

—
~—

)« /H]][V

AQFEREEIICGET ZEBR

Approximate %

Fﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
ERAT
EBTRHZ
i3] L) HAER At By BOEIE
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust - 149,049,960 149,049,960 44.44%
RiRtE PRETZHIA (Note)
(Wit
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,675,335
REIRLE ERBEA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 198,725,295 59.24%
FEXEA (Note)
(Wit
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REY LT ExBERA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 149,649,960 44.61%
EAZRA (Notg)
(Wit
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued y—2¢ ),
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Number of ordinary shares held

AATEREEIOETZE

EERTETHRAERKRAD
MERG - EEE 2 ESRK

mK (&)

Approximate %

Fﬁﬁ5¥ﬁ¥ﬁﬁ§kﬁ of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
HRHE
ERTRHZ
i3] ) AARR Hi s By R
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie Beneficial Owner 1,258,000
REH T+ ExBRA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 150,307,960 44.81%
EEXEA (Notg)
(H#)
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.30%
RETE ERBEA
Note: B & -

The references to 149,049,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL"), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL") and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie.

Fil BTiR ] 2 149,049,960 A A B I 13 & $5
[6 — F% 17 18 25 » E 1 134,821,9600% A% 17 /1 38 1@
REBRAR([ERHKEIFHF 7,658,000
BROBMEREERAT ([BERE]FEE
1%6,570,0000% f% {7 B3 Unison Associates Limited
(TUALD # B - E 289.0%m K £
& 2100%4E 25 FAUALEE A ° 3R f 55 £ 2 The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([Trust ] ) 2 B E® F
A ° Credit Suisse Trust LimitedbATrustZ 55E A
B9 B100% 2 UALIR # » Trustz A g ¥ 2
(BEMA)PEREEBLLE RER LT RRE
iz 4o
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2015,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.
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Directors’ Report

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

EEEHE

BEROSEZ 2L

BRI ARG B 5 S B M 30 B g At
25N NR A SEATATH B A R R F A E
SEEMZH EARBDEFVEBALR
B EM AR Z BN HIAETF M

BYFATESZEME

ARREEEZSBIUFATESTSAR N
ZHERE RTANABRMES ETRA
(TEMAR BN ) E3AMER E 2 BN - &K
REIRA 2RBUIFATESTHRBILA
+o

EEREAGSHZESR

EREXHEERAA ([Eml) XA A
ZEREBEMBAR HEEERARGL
—HBEY - BEERARR/TMIRE (KA
AZEIERF)2EEEMB AR RIEZX
B BEER QRSN EEMN T
= R R Ul EE SR R B R OB AR 2 BBy T Al
T FEfw - ATH82,0008 T M —F—
TEMA—AMRSG REFEREREFE
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PP+ 2 7 & 48 %8 /3984,000/8 7T ©
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance (continueq)

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000. The
tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1
April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

HEhEERUBBERAT ("EI5H#E”) , a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr. Cheung Pui granted to =
513 a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai
Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at
a monthly rent of RMB30,000. This tenancy agreement was for a
term of 1.25 years commenced from 30 September 2013 and early
terminated on 30 April 2014 upon cessation of business of =[5 17
#. A new tenancy agreement was signed and commenced on 1
May 2014 for a term of 2 months at monthly rent of RMB15,000.
The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of
these agreements were RMB60,000 (equivalent to HK$75,000).

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy

The Company has set up a remuneration committee. The
remuneration committee is responsible for developing the
remuneration policy and reviewing the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board which are determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with
a view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation.

Substantial Shareholders

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the Company,
at 31 March 2015, shareholders (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREE 287)

Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
BN

UAL Held by controlled corporation
FriZESl 2 AR R
Beneficial Owner
EREAA

AICL Beneficial Owner

TRIRE EREAA

EEEHE

A BR

ARAREKRLFHEES - FMEEECRE
HEFMBIRERHNESRSREEREZ
FB YREFHREXER KRENET
IR ANEBZEE mHEHRHRE
EBRBERERELETEESARE
Lo

FERR

RARREERESTHRAEMMA R_F
—hAF=A=1—H REAXF RN XA
By B RBE S KB GROIFEXVEE2
K 3D BPHME BRI R R W B L ER
RRBIRES R E GG EIBHREFNE
EMAkEAERAFNERIORE 2R
(ARREZHZBTHABRINOT

TERRRAEDARDZ2HR

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ

EBRR O BAE
149,049,960 44.44%
142,479,960 42.48%
6,570,000 1.96%
134,821,960 40.19%
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREMH Lg%

Beneficial Owner
ExnBEAA
Held by controlled corporation

Pzl z AERA

Webb, David Michael

Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner

Note:

The reference to 27,905,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the shareholding
of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was increased from
26,886,000 shares to 27,905,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$274,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 22 to 31.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2015 as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A.4.1, A4.2, A51, A6.7 and E.1.2
details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Company (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr. Cheung
Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director), Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Mr.
Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung
Mau. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Pui 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 4/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent Non-executive Directors and one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise. Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has arranged for Directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its Directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no different from that required of a chief executive
stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code. The
management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the Executive
Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the first general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/or
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of Directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All Directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2015,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development
and changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to each
of Mr. Cheung Lun, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Chan
How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung Mau to
keep themselves update on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2014, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on internal control.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 March 2012
with written terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.2 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, majority of which are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon, being an Independent
Non-executive Director, acts as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun,
an Independent Non-executive Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee Members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each Director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun 11
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 11

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 9 and 30 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 September 2012. Ms.
Wong is responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in
relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 32 to 33 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as

follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 2,033
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 297

Taxation services 377

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24

Internal Controls

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and to ensure
strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and reporting to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Internal Controls (continueq)

The Group’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried out an
overview on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. No material internal control aspects of any significant
problems were noted. Both the Audit Committee and the Board
were satisfied that the internal control system of the Group had
functioned effectively during the year under review. During the
annual review, the audit committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Chan How Chun and
Professor Lo Chung Mau, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 22 August 2014 due to other business
engagements.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Audit Committee should attend the annual
general meeting. Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22 August 2014. The Chairmen
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
TRERRERRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2015, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2015
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34

Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Other comprehensive (expense)
income:
Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations

Net adjustments on available-for-sale
investments

Translation reserve released upon
dissolution of a foreign operation

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year,
net of income tax

CE
& AR

EH

H o W zm

H 2 N & &5 18

$HE D AR

TTBUA A

BREMEZ A FEEHMELE
B &1 A

LUR IR

B A% A1t 7
TSR

AEETHELATEBAZ
R

Htt 2| (FAX) s

AENREEEN 7 KBz
EH :
BEBINRGREELZ

ERER
AHHEREZHEFER

RE RIS 75y [0
ERL R

AEFEMERE (FX) K
(HIERFAEHIE)

Total comprehensive income for the year ANA R A DAL R BHEE AZ

attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic

FEE2EKDAR

SREF

=N

Allan International Holdings Limited ZE & BB & E AR A T

mEEENR
Htt 2 mEWmx

BE

—E-—RE=A=+—HILEE
2015 2014
—2-h% —E-HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat Fr8T FHET
7 1,946,003 2,015,405
(1,724,655) (1,770,775)
221,348 244,630
8 10,566 10,207
10 4,063 (5,095)
(34,599) (35,370)
(144,017) (138,171)
17 30,000 31,166
11 (1,428) (2,048)
85,933 105,319
13 (15,453) (21,862)
14 70,480 83,457
(613) 219
(364) (178)
(5,993) =
(6,970) 41
63,510 83,498

16

HK21.0 centsi&fli  HK24.9 cents& 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EME 17 248,000 218,000
Property, plant and equipment L ER S 18 300,312 337,705
Prepaid lease payments A EERE 19 26,394 27,104
Club debentures eHEES 20 13,866 13,866
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 21 13,563 9,217
Financial assets designated FRBERIE AT ETEY
at fair value through WBEE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 22 3,635 5,480
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEREEDE- -BEK
property, plant and equipment B HkA 2,967 6,177
608,737 617,549
Current assets MENE E
Inventories "E 23 103,724 100,250
Trade receivables and bills receivable U E 5 R R K EUR = iR 24 400,033 380,221
Other receivables H b e W BR X 24 99,244 60,878
Mould deposits paid ERNEAS 16,457 20,375
Prepaid lease payments FENEEFIE 19 716 721
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 21 1,617 2,342
Tax recoverable FER IR 7,692 6,708
Time deposits and deposits placed TFHFREGFERIRITR
with banks and financial institutions TRIEEE R 25 197,307 280,761
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERR® 25 208,304 256,982
1,035,094 1,109,238
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade payables ERESER 26 262,593 301,786
Other payables and accruals H b e BR SR S BN R A 140,540 168,747
Mould deposits received BEREATS 33,912 39,007
Tax payable FERT IR 40,294 45,780
Secured bank loans BHEMIRITER
— due within one year ——FRIH 27 26,441 46,728
503,780 602,048
Net current assets MEEEFE 531,314 507,190
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEARE 1,140,051 1,124,739

Annual Report 2014/2015 —E—NEZ_F—HFFH{K 35



36

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2015

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities IR AET I8
Secured bank loans BHEMEBEITER

- due after one year ——F & EIH

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves BEAR K
Share capital fi& 7
Reserves 1

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 127 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REBY
Director

EF

Allan International Holdings Limited Z= BB £ @A R 2 7

e MIARR R

R-_ZE-—hFE=A=1+—H

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—mF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
28 12,939 12,423
27 51,657 65,150
64,596 77,573

1,075,455 1,047,166

29 33,543 33,543
1,041,912 1,013,623

1,075,455 1,047,166

FNEMEEITEZEEMBREEER
“E-RAFERNAZTANBEESTEHRHER
RERE THTFINEEAREE:

Cheung Lai See, Sophie
RS Hi
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #ZRESEZEFHR

For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=+—HLFE
Capital  Investment Property
Share Share  redemption  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAER RE LES
B RHEE e EfRE EftfE EiRE RERE REER aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2013 RZZ-=fmA-A 33,543 109,884 793 735 12,292 39,860 34,550 774,871 1,006,528
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - - - - 83,457 83,457
Exchange difference arising on BEBNEBREEL

translating foreign operations ERER = - - - - 219 - - 219
Net gain on revaluation of avallable-for- [ 1 &£ &

sale investments EfRRAFE - - - 352 - - - - 352

Cumulative gain reclassified to profit &A1 & REH
orloss on sale of avallable-for-sale B BFEHMHE

investments BaR - - - (530) - - - - (530)
Other comprehensive (expense) REEEMEE
income for the year (S e - = = (178) S 219 S = 4

Total comprehensive (expense) income  REE 2 (X iH)
for the year g - - : (178 . 219 . 83457 83,498

Release of property revaluation reserve it B AR EREME

on disposal of an investment REEREENE

property held by a subsidiary EfbEE (Mi12)

(note 12) - - - - (12,292) - = 12,202 =
Dividend proposed for 2014 (note 15)  $E% —F—MERE

(BH#E15) - - - - - - 26,835 (26,835) =

Dividends recognised as distrbution ~ BERED R 2 &

(note 15) (WiE15) 5 = 5 5 = 5 (34,550) (8,386) (42,936)
Unclaimed dividend forfeited BhEAREZRS - - - - - - - 76 76

AL 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=E-ME=A=+-7

kZF-NE¥mA—-A 33,543 109,884 793 557 - 40,079 26,835 835,475 1,047,166
Profit for the year FEEET - - - - - - - 70,480 70,480
Exchange difference arising on BREBIEBREEL
translating foreign operations ERER - - - - - (619) - - (613)
Net gain on revaluation of avallable-for- 11 & &
sale investments BREFFE - - - 143 - - - = 143

Cumulative gain reclassified to profit ~ HE A EREM
orloss on sale of available-for-sale 2 RNERHED

investments BER - - - (507) = = = = (507)
Release of translation reserve on ERENEBEEE
dissolution of a foreign operation EiGE - - - - - (5,993) - - (5,993)

Other comprehensive expense for the  AEEEi 2 E
year - - - (364) - (6,606) - - (6,970)

Total comprehensive (expense) income  RNEE 2 (H)
for the year et & S > (364) - (6,606) - 70,480 63,510

Dividend proposed for 2015 (note 15)  #¥E%E —E-HERE

(Bif#E15) - - - - - = 25,157 (25,157) =

Dividends recognised as distribution  #EZED R 2B &
(note 15) (Bif#E15) - - - - - - (26,835) (8,386) (35,221)
At 31 March 2015 RZB-R%=A=1-A 33,543 109,884 793 193 - 33473 25,157 872,412 1,075,455
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments
Gain on sale of available-for-sale
investments
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Increase in fair value changes of
investment properties
Interest expenses
Interest income
Gain arising on change in fair value
of financial assets designated at
FVTPL
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Release of translation reserve on
dissolution of a foreign operation
Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade
receivables and bills receivable

(Increase) decrease in other
receivables

Decrease (increase) in mould deposits
paid

Decrease in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and
accruals

(Decrease) increase in mould deposits
received

Cash (used in) generated from
operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

MERERER

(E_T-AF=A=t—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-fHF — &
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HaF FHT FHT
RETE
BR 25 B A 85,933 105,319
gﬂ%&z
TE 1~ 7 & 5K 8
716 721
HEHEERERT
(507) (530)
ME- -BMEREZEITE
71,552 78,548
"EME 2 N EE BN
(30,000) (31,166)
B H 1,428 2,048
FLEMA (3,277) (2,369)
BRBEEEATENE
VK EEEHMESZ
vl (35) (138)
HEWE BERZHEZ
el (959) (1,080)
R RGN E TSR
B 8 H (i (5,993) =
MR BB KR
104 584
EEERNEEFE 2
REBFSRE 118,962 151,937
&N (3,474) (14,362)
EWE 5 RA R ERER
(ia D)/DZ’J\ (19,812) 137,165
H b pE UK BR 3R (3 hn) SR >
(38,366) 67,450
BENEEZESRD (3Em)
3,918 (1,812)
JENE SRR RENERBD (39,193) (33,039)
H P AR R R R A R AR A
(28,207) (11,563)
BWEEES ()L
(5,095) 4,955
KB (FIRE)RELEZRSE
(11,267) 300,731
ENEAENEH (15,195) (19,386)
ENPEARAMEA
([HRE]EMBH (6,212) (3,860)
REEE (FT#) BT
EECHSFEH (32,674) 277,485
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of time deposits and

deposits placed with banks and

financial institutions

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
Proceeds on disposal/redemption of

available-for-sale investments
Interest received

Proceeds on redemption of financial

assets at FVTPL

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Placement of time deposits and

deposits placed with banks and

financial institutions

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale
investments

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

Unclaimed dividend received

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR, represented by

bank balances and cash

BE—T—

BREEE
ERTHFEREGFERIRIT R
TR ETT

& — B & B TSR0

HE /BEA#HERE
P15 3R

B KA S

HERE ETL&E%@@E’ATHE
AEZHBEEZR

BEE BERRE
TS5 1R

BRRESERRERRTR
TR

BEWE BENMRE
BEAHLERE

ENBEYE BEK
HER®

REZHMES (FTFE)
BEFE

BMEEY

ERNEE

BEER

EHE

H&Eﬂ/\ BRZIE

BMETHMERSFE

BeRBEEEE
OB ) 18 0% 88

REDZRERAEEE

REGZRERREEE
HERRTEFMAS

Annual Report 2014/2015 —E—FE=

mMERERER

AFE=ZA=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HE — &
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FEIT
538,269 406,772
12 = 55,147
7,570 9,116
3,277 2,369
1,880 =
1,590 1,443
(454,815) (548,156)
(29,331) (16,831)
(11,048) (4,760)
(2,967) 6,177)
54,425 (101,077)
(35,221) (42,936)
(33,780) (33,779)
(1,428) (2,048)
= 76
(70,429) (78,687)
(48,678) 97,721
256,982 159,261
208,304 256,982
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & BA# 8 &5 & M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B T—hF=A=1+—HIFE
General 1. B

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company is Allan
Investment Company Limited, a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit
Suisse Trust Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun
Family Trust (“Trust”) and the discretionary beneficiaries of
the Trust are, among other family members, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

40 Allan International Holdings Limited Z2fa BB @A R 2 7

ARBIRBEREFMKNLAZREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR& B F& R E E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HItFE
2. Application of New and Revised 2. BRAFI KRBT EEHN
Hong Kong Financial Reporting BHEER (BB KR
Standards (“HKFRSs”) FHEEA])
The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the AEBERAEEBEXRNKATINEE
following amendments to HKFRSs and a new Interpretation. AR—IBF2EEEMBREER:
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities EREMBREEANEI0% REESR
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 BRMBREERE12%
REBETERERZ
cH
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities BRI ERNERF 2B BHENKEERMBEE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for ERGHEMNEG R BF] FUBEEZTREEE
Non-Financial Assets RE
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge BRI ERER B TETACERRYEFE
Accounting R EE
HK(FRIC) - Int 21 Levies Bk (ERMBRERE BE

5 (B
ZBE)-2BENT

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and a new RAFERABEEMBRELINEE]
interpretation in the current year has had no material impact on AR —IEHZE TESAEEAFE
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current MBAFERNMERIE RN R,
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these ZEREU MR ENRBEENE
consolidated financial statements. W&o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

Exception®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle®

E-T—

e ISR E E R

AFE=ZA=+—HILFE

BRAME REBTEBR
B EER ([ FEMBER

S£281]) @)

AEEYEZFEMATHIERMIE
REMZHET RBIETEEM B RE

EH:

ERMBESER RN SRIE

BRMBRSENF 143K EERILRR?

BRMBEEERF 158 RERPANIKE

ERMBASEANENR LT KERRBEEREL
it RE

BRI ENF IR 2B IPRE

BRGENF 6% R EZHERBHN

BRETERERR BT LB

BREERF19R BT TEBMHE:ER

e

BEGHEANFI6RL
ERGHRRENR 2B

BRGERFR BT

ERMBASEAFI0RR

REEEREYS

BUMBRR B
REFEAREHRED

BRETERFBR BT AZRCEE
HER A
ERMBESEAFI0HL REER ERA&KA
B3] ERMBEREER A ZBISMERS

F1R BT REREH
EB|E088% 2 55T
BEMBREER 2B

BRMBREEN 2B

BRMBREEN 2B

ZT-TFEE-T-CF
RENERUBRE
R 7 B

“E——Fz-F-ZF
RENERUBRE
B 7 EE

“E-CFZ"E-ME
RENERUBRE
BB 7 EE S

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

e Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continuea)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

e

B wESHE

BE—_ET—RE=A=1+—HIEFE

Fﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂ RIEFTE B
B EER ([FEABBER
SHER]) @)

ERUBBEENFREHTA
R-ZBZNFRMO BBV B REE
AESFSIAFRTREENBANAE
ZHRE - BAEMBHREEAFESRE
BR_T-TFELER MAGEY
BREDBEMFTERBBR IR
RE AR —_F—=FEHE—F(&
R MABR—REFEHRETALZ
HBRE -NR_T—UFRMZBEMF
HELERNFH S — ERBTRAEE
MAa)E BB EEZRBERTE Ko)iE
RETHEBBILASIAEREME
EWARAFEIER] ([BEEMLE
W AR R ¥EW$D*EE%¥¢
DERFEREFELARER

ERUBMEERBOR EERTESH
T

s HERBGFEAFEREHT
A ERRTEGRBANMEBRD
WRUKEE  HigHREHK
A AFEFE LHZE UEHE
WBREHNREMNEFREAFE
RER/RZNRERRE RAEF
BHEHNRERMEBNEBEKR
B —BRREZSTHRAARE
REBHEKAGTHE-HBENRRER
KE&EHRSRREENBKEE
ZEBEAFHREZEHIA
NEHBEESNERTREE
AELEZRERMABREIAR
BEAERASMENEBL
B ZERBREMEERARATF
BIRZARGFAE-FAEEME
BIRERRERENIREZET
BRI RIA R FERTE o o 1R
BEBVBRESERNFER B
AEH A HE M EREAEMS
E = 25 R ERE (W IERFIE
BE)ATECEEEY —KE
REMWARIBZ AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 48 B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—hAF=A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised H RAKIEFT BB
Hong Kong Financial Reporting i’%%ﬁ% JJ (BB KR
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuec) FEA]) @

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) ERMBERELEAFEIRLHT A
(#4)
With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities e BEHERATEFABZ MG

designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire

E%ﬁ%'%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
O E - M B REMEER
SEolEcMBEER ¥ﬁmﬁ
THRNEMEEKREES] BRI
\Aﬁiﬁw SR ZARER
ERREE s FEKSENAIE
REBRZ B HE -BUBRE
ZFEHﬁﬁ@%@Z%%%%
NP EEHEERTENEBEREH
D MAREEF B G ERF39
M RE BAFEFABRGELZ

amount of the change in the fair value of the financial TRAEBCATEEDHERBSHE
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was BT EY -

presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS e NMUBBEEZREmMES HEE

9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.

SR EREIPRA MEEELRE
ERBEEAFERAR BEYK

The expected credit loss model requires an entity to HRELERBESRATIRBHREE
account for expected credit losses and changes in those EEEAFE BHEEFEE
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect AR TEEERSHE B RIGER

changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continuea)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a material impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
(e.g. the Group’s investments in unlisted investment fund
and debt securities that are currently classified as available-
for-sale investments may have to be measured at fair value
at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in
the fair value being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding
the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future will have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continued)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group
uses the straight-line method for depreciation for its property,
plant and equipment. The Directors believe that the straight-
line method is the most appropriate method to reflect the
consumption of economic benefits inherent in the respective
assets and accordingly, the Directors do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

° At cost

° In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments.: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be
an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall
account for the change from the date when the change in
status occurred.

Annual Report 2014/2015 —&—

e

B RESHE

BE_ T AF=A=T—HILFE

#75] R IS5 S
4

(%)

ERETTEAEI6RREBEER
SB38IE (BRI AR) WES Z T ER B
T REE (F)

BEREIARARKEREZERAR -
E-RE-A-BHZERRAIBNFE
HE-BHE AEERENE BE &
REFREREETHE - EFRR
ERERRRBBEENKENENA
E;ﬁﬁﬂ’]?‘ B75 Bt EEEET
EREB G EAF16RRBEER
QS 385I“E’JEZ$( AR IEH AR
SENGEEMBBRRELEATE -

EREERNE27S (BITX) B
#7019 i %
ZEFTAATERBN LB BERK
PIRBEATEEBRNMBE LR 5F
EERBERRZRE

o A
o  RIEBBYHREELFSHRER
TE (BB ERFE399 2
BTA: FRLRGE (AN
BEENBREEREORNER
5)) =&
. T%ﬁ%i%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂ%z&}“i/\ﬁfé*
RNEIR G E IR A7 & Pl 1 1
=ik e
G A AERIBIR B FAEE -
ZIERIANEE B ARTHAKRE
BERAXAIRETEEN HAQMMUE
g BEERMEEE-
MEF—E—HEEH

47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements (Continued)

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (i) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
July 2014,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
18 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As the
amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted
in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continuea)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
issued in December 2011 and effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly required for all
interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to be
included in condensed interim financial statements to comply
with HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in
the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds being
assessed at currency level. The amendments apply from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements in which the amendments are first applied.
Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the
interim financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference
from the interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the same
terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=1+—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETEE @

(Continueq)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment (other than properties under
construction) over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as FVTPL.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments.: Recognition and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6c¢.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be material.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, or loans and receivables. Equity
and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating
to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed
not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting
policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable and a bill receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and secured bank loans) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, translation costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=1+—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETEE @

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

72  Allan International Holdings Limited Z2fa BB @A R 2 7

e MR E SR

BHE_Z-—hF=A=1+—HILFE

EEEHERMES TS
BIEENEERIR

RFE R BN M AN B & 5t R
o BERALREKBHEBRIECIRIGH
BENMAGEREEEDHE G R
& o fhEF REERRIREBELR &
HApiR A ERRREL - BRRRER
BEB RN F At

AEBEAFEN BERRE G RE
AR - WiEF St bt ERER —H
B AIRMERT A R R R I iR e
71 RERT R E AR HIE RO R - Bl
AL & ET 80 HA R MR SR B R 2R
RAER] °

FERETBRNEEHE
NTREENERAEESERB
RPMELMERGA T HREER
RN THAAREATYENET EH
OF RAEETRRIN (R ) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continuea)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties in Hong Kong as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continuea)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Investment properties

As described in note 17, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have used a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the management
has exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. If there are changes in the assumptions used
for the valuation, the fair value of the investment properties
will change in future. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying
amount of investment properties was HK$248,000,000 (2014:
HK$218,000,000). Details are set out in note 17.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2015 was HK$300,312,000 (2014:
HK$337,705,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment is available
for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. If the estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment did not reflect its actual
useful life, additional depreciation may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continuea)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group looks for
other appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6¢ and
17 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments

6a.

6b.

Categories of financial instruments

BE-F-AF=A=t—AILFE
6. TMIA

6a. TRT AEK

Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including cash & 2t & JiE U B 7%

and cash equivalents) (BREASEIREEE)
Available-for-sale investments A HERE

Financial assets designated at FVTPL

B 75 & B
Financial liabilities S =Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B 15 & E-EA AR

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, time deposits and deposits
placed with banks and financial institutions, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables and
secured bank loans. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments continueq) 6. €T HE»
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MBEREEEEREE (£)
(Continued)
Market risk 75 E B
Currency risk B

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. Over 99% (2014: 98%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making the
sale.

The Group currently does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However,
the management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ZN/NETR=E- 4l )= NCIIV RN 5
TEE X WASEAmEINER
%o AL B R HE BB (=
T4 : 98% ) A EFEREE
BEETE

AEBRERBETEIRINER
R rE B2 EEEEER
DERIMNERRMEERTERS
ZREPERIINE R -

RmERERB  AEBAINE
AEZEREEREBARZIK
E{EWT :

Liabilities Assets
=i iE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —T-@ONF Z=B-AF _"T-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T87T FHET T8
United States dollar (“USD”) %7t 28,126 39,220 560,802 655,019
Euro (“EUR") X 7 284 227 40 897
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE - = 132,953 87,251

Assets and liabilities denominated in USD, EUR and RMB
mainly represents time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions, trade receivables/
payables, bills receivable and other receivables/payables
held by the Group.

AEBENUET BERAREE
BeEENBABIZETENF
FEFRRITREREBETR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ~ #R& B I& 3R E ZKIcE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 E-—AF=A=1+—HItFE
6. Financial Instruments (continveq) 6. ST H »

6b. MBEMEERERERBE (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, EUR and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HK$ or RMB. As the USD will only vary between
HK$7.75=USD1.00 and HK$7.85=USD1.00 under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the management of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s exposure
to USD is minimal and accordingly, no foreign currency
sensitivity analysis on USD is presented.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2014: 3%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies except for EUR, of which
20% (2014: 20%) increase and decrease is used due
to the Europe Sovereign Debt Crisis which leads to
significant fluctuation on EUR. These percentages are the
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% (2014: 3%) change in foreign currency
rates, for the case of EUR, 20% (2014: 20%). A positive
(negative) number below indicates an increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit where the functional currencies of
respective group entities weaken 3% (EUR: 20%) against
the relevant currencies. For a 3% (2014: 3%), or in the
case of EUR, 20% (2014: 20%), strengthening of the
functional currencies of respective group entities against
the relevant currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

6.

Impact of EUR

ERITHE @

6b.

MERREZEEEREE (&)

mEEE (&)
HIEE T (&)

Impact of RMB

BETE ARBHE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF Z—E—WFE BB —T@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Profit or loss for the year — ZARF 5 Ei8 41 112 3,330 2,186

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, outstanding receivables and payables at the
year end.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans. The Group
currently does not enter into any interest rate swaps to
convert floating rate to fixed rate obligations. However,
the management closely monitors interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The management considers the cash flow interest rate in
relation to variable-rate bank balances is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been
prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments continueq) 6. €T HE»
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MEEREEBEEREE (&)
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point
(2014: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2014: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2015 would decrease/increase by HK$65,000
(2014: decrease/increase by HK$93,000). This is
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its secured bank loans.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its unlisted debt investments and unlisted
investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B F& 3R & = Kist

For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 E—AF=A=1+—HItEE
6. Financial Instruments (continveq) 6. ST H »

6b. KEMEEBERERKE (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2015 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 89% (2014: 90%) of the trade
receivables and bills receivable at 31 March 2015, which
contributed the Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location in Asia and Europe. The failure of
these customers to make required payment could have
a substantial negative impact on the Group’s profits and
liquidity. In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=1+—HLFE
6. Financial Instruments continueq) 6. €T HE»
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MBEREEEEREE (£)

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmE (&
Other than concentration of credit risk on trade REERRSETERKEFHER
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are WmEdIN RBESTFRFRE
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with A SEATRMRITHS B
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other BR AEETFEERNEKXRH
significant concentration of credit risk. AREEERR-
Liquidity risk HEE 2R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEERDESRARE  KEE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash EEERBTHANER RRFR
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to ERBEEZEEBKFE UALXEE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects NWEKLERHESTWRHERS
of fluctuations in cash flows. MERBHTE-
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANREETEMBEE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial ZEBTAELOREE R TIBE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AEERAUEEREENFAE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on ZEEFAHZAFRERERE
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to RELFRIE - TR TEEITH
pay. Specifically, bank loan with a repayment on demand HER Z o gEM - A B A BER IR
clause is included in the time band for earliest repayment ERERBIERZFETEEHTA
regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to =PEHEHEE -tk RBEFBE X
exercise its right. The table includes both interest and AeRERE-FERERIEH
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are ME UM E - RITRESEKR
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from B R ¥R E B4 R 2 M R R 1T
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period. Ho
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B F&3RE E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HIFE
6. Financial Instruments continueq) 6. €T HE»
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MBEREEEEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELERE (&)
Liquidity tables HEEZ K
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Lessthan 3 months to 1105 Over undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 5years  cash flows 2015
“E-1f
me =R - FARERE =ZA=t+-H

FHRE SRZfEA E-F f5ik:3 RENRE RELR ZIRAE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
FEx FEx FEx TEn FET FEx

2015 —E-3f
Financial liabilities at p:3-V-pd
amortised cost BERA
Trade payables ERESER - 258,275 4,318 - - 262,593 262,593
Other payables AR - 14 - - - 141 141
Secured bank loans BEAERTER
- variable rate %8 1.44 19,447 7,958 22,223 32,158 81,786 78,098
277,863 12,276 22,223 32,158 344,520 340,832
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Lessthan 3 months to 1105 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 5 years cash flows 2014
—E-mE
g =fER —f *RERE A=A
THME  PR=EA - Bh% AENE mELE LEEE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2014 “Z-MF
Financial liabilities at BRaEL
amortised cost BHAx
Trade payables ERE RN - 297,039 4,747 - - 301,786 301,786
Other payables HiERER - 156 = = = 156 156
Secured bank loans BEERTER
- variable rate 28 1.55 28,068 20,450 30,798 37,599 116,915 111,878

325,263 25,197 30,798 37,599 418,857 413,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, bank loan
with a repayment on demand clause is included in the
‘less than 3 months” and “3 months to 1 year” time
bands, respectively, in the above maturity analysis
according to the effective date of the repayment on
demand clause at the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the aggregate
carrying amount of such bank loan amounted to
HK$12,949,000 and HK$20,349,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretionary right to demand immediate
repayment upon effective date of the repayment on
demand clause. The Directors believe that such bank
loan will be repaid in 21 monthly instalments after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan agreement.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6¢C.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group

determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

mEMBRE SN

E-T—

6.

AFE=ZA=+—HILFE

ERITHE @
6. SMTEATENE

I B FEH £ A SR [ 40 o] B E & TR
BEERVBABENRAFEZE

ko

(i)

REFHHBEEERIBE
ERFERELAEMEEEZ
NFETE

RERESHR  NEBEBH I
BEERMKEBEDEAF
Bt 2 TREHWAEEZ
EHBEERMBEBERT
BErRER (5B RFTAMER
M) - ARBATFEFEH A
BENABREEHQFE
AESAATFESEREIRE
FE3W -

Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March 2015 hierarchy Valuation technique
R-—ZB-RF=A=+—-H2
MBEE DFE DNPEER HERMN
Available-for-sale Investment in unlisted investment Level 3 Net asset value (Note)
investments funds and unlisted debt securities
HK$15,180,000
AHEHERE RENFLTREEEG R FE=4 BEFRE (KT

JE F &R & $15,180,000 7T

Financial assets
designated at FVTPL
HK$3,635,000
FERERERATE KRERFLTREESR
AEIMBEE

Note: The Group has determined that the reported net
asset value represents the fair value of the unlisted
investment funds and unlisted debt securities.

Investment in unlisted investment

JF T B 3E 3,635,000/ 7T

Level 3
funds and unlisted debt securities

E—y

Net asset value (Note)

BERE (W)

Hiet - REBEDHEEERSH
BEFERFLTRE
Ee RIFLTEHKES

ZRFEe

Annual Report 2014/2015 —E—NEZ_F—HFFH

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_T—hAF=-HA=1T—HLHFE
6. Financial Instruments continueq) 6. €T HE»
6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments 6c. SRMIANFENE (&)

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) FEBLTERBFLZME
financial liabilities that are not measured at EEAFEAEWHBEEZE
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value ROBKEELFE (BEZE
disclosures required) RELH R FEFEE)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of EEZRBNEEMFEHRENA
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in HBEERMBEEZR

the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

(iij) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (iii)
measurements of financial assets

EEEEAFERS-

HMBEEEF=RLFETE
2 ¥k

Financial
Available- assets
for-sale designated
investments at FVTPL
RALEFE
AHEERE ZHBEE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMHA—H 15,563 5,342
Total gains: AR
— in profit or loss — 8% 530 138
— in other comprehensive income —Hibz2mEksE (178) =
Purchases BE 4,760 -
Settlements “E (9,116) -
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE—MF=A=+—H
;EZFE-MFMA—AH 11,559 5,480
Total gains: AN
— in profit or loss —8% 507 35
— in other comprehensive income —Hae2mE k= (364) =
Purchases BE 11,048 =
Settlements wE (7,570) (1,880)
At 31 March 2015 s T
=A=+—8 15,180 3,635
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(iii)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets (Continued)
The total gains or losses for the year included
an unrealised gain of HK$31,000 relating to
unlisted investment funds that are measured at
the end of each reporting period (2014: a gain of
HK$225,000). Such fair value gains or losses are
included in “other gains and losses”.

All gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income for the current year relate
to unquoted equity securities held at the end of the
reporting period and are reported as changes of
“investment revaluation reserve”.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliance. The Group is
currently organised into four operating divisions — Europe
sales, Asia sales, America sales and other sales. The
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of performance is based on these operating divisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Segment Information (continuea)

Segment Revenues and Results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and

results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2015

7. 7EER @)

DTEHMEXRBERESR

AT KREARBIZAZHRELED
MEER  Wm R FEEL 29

BEr-_F-—AF=-FA=1+—HIFE

Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
B M EF) Hity &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Mita)
Segment revenue AREEE 988,552 466,451 404,493 86,507 1,946,003
Segment profit o ERF 68,131 32,148 27,877 5,962 134,118
Other gains and losses (except net Hi AR REE (NERFF
foreign exchange gain) RSN (1,397)
Depreciation (except moulds) e (AR (67,166)
Increase in fair value of investment BREMERTEEM
properties 30,000
Finance costs BBER (1,428)
Unallocated income and expenses, net AP EMA RFI% 2%
(Note b) (Hiitb) (8,194)
Profit before tax BR 5 A1 8 85,933
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015

7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEEFR #
Segment Revenues and Results (Continued) DEREEBEREE (£)
Year ended 31 March 2014 B _F—WF=H=+—HIFE
Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
BN T =M Hitp e
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FAET FET
(Note a)
(Wiita)
Segment revenue NHEER 1,021,305 518,726 383,816 91,558 2,015,405
Segment profit DEEH 81,292 41,289 30,550 7,288 160,419
Other gains and losses (except net HtBHRER
foreign exchange loss) (SNEBBFERM) 1,164
Depreciation (except moulds) e (EAR) (74,070)
Increase in fair value of investment REMELTEEM
properties 31,166
Finance costs BHER (2,048)
Unallocated income and expenses, net A2 BUWA RS 25
(Note b) (Hiitb) (11,312)
Profit before tax BREL AR 105,319
Note a:  Segment revenue in others represent revenue from Wita - DIAHAMME 2 HEEEERE
destinations of shipment of products which individually BEMEERBEEETE10%8M
contributed less than 10% of total revenue of the Group. EHRM -
Note b:  Unallocated income and expenses represented other Kiazb : RHOBBRARRZRE Ak

income, central administration costs and Directors’

salaries.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of other income, central administration
cost and Directors’ salaries, other gains and losses (except
net foreign exchange gain (loss)), depreciation (except

moulds), increase in fair value of investment properties and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Revenue reported

above represents revenue generated from external customers.

There were no inter-segment sales in both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—hAF=A=+—HItFE

Segment Information (continuea) 7. DEER =&
Segment Assets and Liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities AT AEEZRAEREEES KD
by reportable and operating segment: MEERBEER:
Segment Assets T EEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe B 263,600 255,903
Asia DN 131,652 130,424
America M 106,876 97,627
Others H b [@ 24,629 23,421
Segment assets DEEE 526,757 507,375
Unallocated assets ROBREE
Available-for-sale investments AHBERE 15,180 11,559
Financial assets designated as FVTPL EREREATEFEZ
MGERE 3,635 5,480
Time deposits and deposits placed with EHERRGFRIEITR

banks and financial institutions A Y RER N 197,307 280,761
Bank balances and cash ROTEFEERS 208,304 256,982
Investment properties "EME 248,000 218,000
Plant, equipment and machinery R~ 5% R i 3%

(except moulds) (ARSI 293,769 331,176
Club debentures eHES 13,866 13,866
Other receivables Hh & W BR 3K 99,244 60,878
Tax recoverable FE R TR IR 7,692 6,708
Other unallocated assets (Note) HEMARDBEE (M) 30,077 34,002

Consolidated assets HEERE 1,643,831 1,726,787
Note: Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease payments Kt HEMARIEEESFEENBEER

and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE_T—

mEMBERE

AFE=ZA=+—HILFE

S HfaE

Segment Information (continuea) 7. DEER =&
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) THEEREEB (£Z)
Segment Liabilities D EHEE
2015 2014
—E-EHE — g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Europe EOM 17,496 20,379
Asia M 7,747 9,576
America EM 7,194 7,333
Others H At = 1,475 1,719
Segment liabilities (Note) DEEE (KE) 33,912 39,007
Unallocated liabilities KoL BE
Trade payables EREZER 262,593 301,786
Other payables and accruals H b S BR R S B A R A 140,540 168,747
Secured bank loans BEMRITER 78,098 111,878
Tax payable FER R IR 40,294 45,780
Deferred tax liabilities IR GE 7 IE 12,939 12,423
Consolidated liabilities mEAR 568,376 679,621
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by each Wit HHEEEELEEF—HHEWE
segment. Ai]&-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—hAF=A=+—HItFE
Segment Information (continuea) 7. DEER =&
Other Segment Information HeoBEaR
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE_FE—HF=A=1—HILFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated ~Consolidated
EM M EM HithE AHEE Ea G
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FE FET FET FET FET FET FE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or WEED B ERETE/M 9 8% F ok &
segment assets: BloHEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERBIEE N 2,349 907 1,000 144 4,400 30,585 34,985
Depreciation g 2,351 892 1,005 138 4,386 67,166 71,552
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision IHZ%IEEEHH?ET KEBEERRAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BETEERFTEZ ﬁ% i ) 3% 8 18 3k
loss or segment assets: DEEE -
Interest income on bank deposits 817777 2 FI 8 M A - - - - - 3,024 3,024
Interest income on available-for- A H £ E 2 FEHA
sale investments - - - - - 253 253
Rental income HEHA - - - - - 4,964 4,964
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE—FT—WWF=HA=+—HIFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated  Consolidated
B b EM HitE PEBE RAR )
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET Tz FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EEEBEREFTE8 D 8 n M K E
segment assets: B D EE-
Additions to non-current assets  FEREIEEE M 2,650 1,229 843 187 4,909 16,142 21,051
Depreciation & 2,397 1,115 788 178 4,478 74,070 78,548

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

Interest income on bank deposits #1777 32 F| 8 A - S
Interest income on available-for- AT HERE 2 FSIMA

sale investments = =
Rental income RelA - -

BT MRHEEZLERRAL
BErAEERFFEZD B G FKEIEK
DEBEE -

= = 2,063 2,063
= = 306 306
= = 5,341 5,341
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HIFE
7. Segment Information continueq) 7. DEBEHR #)
Information about major customers FEEXFMNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HAEEBBAHEETEI0%IIA LK
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as RPHRHMNEERNT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & PA (BUM ~ 25~ EM &

H b ) 743,101 869,667

Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FEB (BUM - 250 ~ =0 &
H i@ ) 605,584 525,876

Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and Others) &P C (BN~ 5~ =M &
Hibilz) 208,638 206,138

8. Other Income 8. Hhg A

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mOF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Rental income e A 4,964 5,341
Interest on bank deposits RITERF B 3,024 2,063
Building management fee income BFERBRA 792 851
Scrap sales 56 BE 1,151 461
Interest on available-for-sale investments AR EREZF B 253 306
Others Hb 382 1,185
10,566 10,207
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2014 eight) Directors and the Chief Executive were as
follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015

9. EEX THHRKEEM=

(a)

EEHe
BN Fe4 (ZT—mEF
8% ) EFRITRMEREE e
m -

BEr—ZE—-—afF=HA=+—HI
FE

Ms. Cheung ~ Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr.Cheung ~ Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, Lai See,  Mr. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau  How Chun 2015
FRit EHEEE  REYZt  REELt FEEE  REPEE  EBERAR  REEEL ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEx TEx FEx TEx FEx TEx FEx TEx FEx
Fees e - - - s - 120 - - 120
Other emoluments ~ E &
Salaries and other ~ HE R
benefits HfoiEh 301 2,732 1,455 1,671 1,328 - - - 10,197
Bonus (note) T (M) 507 2,280 250 2719 250 - - - 3,566
Contributions to RN BIRE
retirement benefits
schemes - 269 146 165 132 - - - 712
Total emoluments ~ ME2%E 3,518 5,281 1,851 2115 1,710 120 - - 14,595
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —F—pFE=H=+—HIt
FEZ
Fess ne = - - - - 100 - - 100
Otheremoluments %
Salaries and other ~~ H£ R
benefits Hf 2,963 2,669 1436 1,577 1,305 - - - 9,950
Bonus (ot A (W) 432 2,513 249 247 178 - - - 3619
Contributions to RINEFIG B
retirement benefits
schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments Wemg 3,3% 5,445 1,828 1,986 1,613 100 - - 14,367
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Frz:  EBRERIDELNIES BIREER

with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B F&3RE E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE_ T AF=-A=+T—HIFE

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE - THHARBKEEMNS
Employees’ Emoluments continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (2 EEME (&)
Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$120,000 EREXHENBE_ZT—LF
(2014: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2015. —A=+t—BlHEEHES
Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$120,000 120,000 0 (=& — Y 4F :
(2014: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2015. 100,000/ 7T) - FREFE LN E
The Chief Executive and no other Director waived any EE-RF=A=+—HIK

10.

emoluments for both years.

FEH®H$120,000/8 7T (ZZF—M
% 100,000 7T) - R B EME
= RITH BRI E E M F A

{i> o
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2015 and AEBR-_ZT—AFR-_ZT—N
2014 were all Directors and details of their emoluments FARMZRFSHENALS

are included in (a) above.

Other Gains and Losses

Net foreign exchange gain (loss)
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Cumulative gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Gain arising on change in fair value of
financial assets
designated at FVTPL

RARBIZER HMEEHE
R 3 () B R o

10. Hth BRI R 18
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
SNERF] (BB FE 2,666 (6,259)
LEHE WERRE 2R
959 1,080
M - BB KRB bR (104) (584)
PEAHEERERHAT
507 530
BRBHEAFEFEZTHE
EZRNTFEEZY
FT EE A 0 & ) 35 138
4,063 (5,095)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

11.Finance Costs

1. BF R R A

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interest on: ATEIEFE
Bank borrowings IRITEE
— wholly repayable within five years —BRAFRBEEE 823 1,400
- not wholly repayable within five years - BAREFANBHEE 605 648
1,428 2,048

12. Disposal of a Subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered
into a sale agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose of the entire equity interest in a then
wholly-owned subsidiary, Southern Well Holdings Limited
(“Southern Well”), at a cash consideration of RMB43,880,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$55,147,000). In addition,
pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of the disposal,
the Group transferred and assigned to the Purchaser an
outstanding balance due from Southern Well amounting to
HK$15,873,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements AR & BA # 3R &5 & i &%

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-Z—

12. Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued) 12. HE— BB AR (@

Southern Well is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its principal asset is two parcels of land located in the
PRC which was classified as investment property at fair
value. The disposal was completed on 30 August 2013,
on which date the Group lost control of Southern Well. The
investment property was disposed at the selling proceed
of HK$55,266,000. The resulting increase in fair value of
HK$23,766,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during
the year ended 31 March 2014 and the property revaluation
reserve of HK$12,292,000, arising from change of usage as
evidenced by end of owner occupation on 1 December 2011,
was transferred to retained profits accordingly. The Directors
believe that the increase in fair value of HK$23,766,000 was
mainly due to a premium paid by the buyer who is holding
another plot of land adjacent to the land held by Southern
Well which might allow the buyer greater flexibility on his
development plan.

mEA—MEEBKNINAG  HFE
BEARNNPEAMB L o8
RBATEBREVE RHFNR_T—=
FNA=ZTHAZEK REEHHE-
REBKREEHE B EGIE ZIK
& W) % A55,266,0008 THE X 5
Ffr 2 & &9 A 1B 38 1123,766,000/% 7T
BEREBE-_E—NF=ZA=+—H1
ZEEBRRkAMEEKERER
MR —E——F+ A —HREKILE
TERAZHARRNEMELEZMESH
f#1%12,292,000% 7T 78 2 & 1L 8 AR
BaM - ZFFHEE A FEMREMZ
23,766,000 T ZHRNERIFE S
— AR T RIS BEREBE
BEMEERHE MENRENEER
)\o

HK$000
FET
Gain/loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHHBARZRF, EHE:
Consideration received IERRAB 55,147
Assignment of shareholder’s loan MR E R E (15,873)
Net assets disposed of HENEEFRE (39,274)
Gain/loss on disposal HEEF,EE -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEZRESRAFE:
Cash consideration BE&RE 55,147
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

12. Disposal of a Subsidiary (continueq)

No summary of cash flows is presented as Southern Well did
not have any cash flows for both periods.

Total effect on equity:
Release of property revaluation reserve
Retained profits recognised

13.Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(Over)underprovision in prior years:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax (note 28):
Current year

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

e MR E F R

BHE_Z-hF=A=1+—HILFE

12. HE— BB AT %)

EEMEFEEBERBEMRASR
BUIEBINERERZER-

HK$ 000
FET
HRESHRENEE:
Y % & 1 7 1 0 1 (12,292)
R & 7 12,292
13. T8RRI X
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
AEEBIE
B 12,443 13,958
AR EMEM 6,311 3,684
18,754 17,642
BEFE (BERE) BETR
BB (96) 4,149
AR EMEM (4,221) 21
4,317) 4,170
EIERLTE (H7228)
KEEG 1,016 50
15,453 21,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #& 3R &5 = [t
For the year ended 31 March 2015 z— =

13.Income Tax Expense (continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5%
Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income that is not taxable
for tax purpose
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC
(Over)underprovision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings
Others

Tax charge for the year

13. fT#

B A5 B st A

BEFERILTE16.5%

AR A EHRETE
AR 2 WA HIETZ
AELERPEARREZFE
BETE (BERB BEBETR
RERBIEBE ZE
ZAIRERRIEBEEE 2 EH

Ao EEF 2 BN
Hitp

REFEBIAXL
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SHBEX #)

FENBA

BEFBECEMEEE ([FFRE]) R
B EEMAA
T A25% o

BlZFf3

AFEZBBEMRTHERAEER
R b2 EMERAZBHAERAT

2015 2014
—E—RE — O
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
85,933 105,319
14,179 17,378
1,292 2,379
(6,013) (6,323)
4117 2,319
4,317) 4,170
4,418 2,496
(88) =
1,041 512
824 (1,069)
15,453 21,862
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

14.

15.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Staff salaries and allowances

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

(2014: net of forfeited amount of
HK$33,131)

Total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments

Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year

2015 Interim dividend of HK2.5 cents

(2014: 2014 interim dividend of
HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share

2014 final dividend of HK8 cents
(2014 2013 final dividend of
HK10.3 cents) per ordinary share

14. XREE %R

AEE MR TIRIE:

BT H M &2
RIK Eﬂ R IETA
T-NHFE - HBRERKRZ
TN JREE33,13187T)

L‘@‘
,D]]D

ITRA(BREEH)
WE BHEEREBITE

RN EERR
Z S0EM B

15. IR &

FRAEBABIREZBE

—RFFEHRE
FE@2.581
—mFE: T -0EF
frEARR B.2.578 1)
—HERERE
%2@%85’%
—HEFEZFT—=F
ﬁi,ﬂﬂ%,%no.sﬁ%m
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2015 2014
—2-RF —HF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T
320,482 311,683
19,138 16,658
339,620 328,341
71,552 78,5648

716 721

2,177 2,405

2015 2014
—2-RF —HF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T
8,386 8,386
26,835 34,550
35,221 42,936
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

15. Dividends (continueq)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK7.5 cents in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014: final dividend of HK8 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2014) per share has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend will be
paid on 23 September 2015 to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 1
September 2015.

16. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

16.

RE =)

RNBERERR EFERREHE—
E-RAF=-A=1t—HLFERHRK
BEER75EM (=T~ :881l) -
IR E 2 KRR EAMB AR A
BRREIGRITZRRABF S Lt
YRR —E-—RAFAA-T=RIK
NFR-ZF-—RFAA-—BRIAEAR
FIBCR A M2 AR -

BREF

BRADEARAES ANERET
ZAETRBATER

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings REBRERERNME 2 &7F
per share (Profit for the year attributable to (RFEAHEERAT

owners of the Company) wEEAZ &)

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of &t & i% E A8 2 F
basic earnings per share f&1n £ B

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
70,480 83,457

Number of shares

mE < &BK

B HE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—MF
‘000 ‘000
7 T
335,433 335,433

EMFEREGRTECEE 2 LB
BB I R EER R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

17.Investment Properties

17. REYE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At fair value ~NFE
Balance at beginning of year FHEER 218,000 242,100
Increase in fair value recognised N EEMRERNER
in profit or loss 30,000 31,166
Disposal & - (55,266)
Balance at end of year FRER 248,000 218,000
Unrealised gain on property valuation Bt ABRZZAER
included in profit or loss MEEHEF 30,000 7,400

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties have been pledged to
secure the mortgage loan granted to the Group.

The investment properties as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014 are commercial building, which was suited in a land in
Hong Kong under long lease.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, an investment property
located outside Hong Kong under long lease was disposed of
upon the disposal of a subsidiary as described in note 12. The
investment property was measured at its fair value at disposal
date and its fair value which, in the opinion of the Directors,
approximates the selling proceeds, of HK$55,266,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

17. REWE »)

17.Investment Properties (continuea)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group.

RHL Appraisal Ltd. are members of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of properties Hong Kong. The
fair value was determined based on the market comparable
approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about their fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014 and 2015
are as follows:

Commercial property units located in
Hong Kong

SEREVENDFEFE

RZE—RAF=ZA=Z+—HEKZZE
—ME=ZA=1+—H AEEEXREWE
AV ERBIYEEHNEESER
HEMKFITHFERMARARE L
i HEREITEMS

KMITHEERRERARRBEAE
ENE g MR 8 - M FISFHEE B
BEAREENERRER - X FETDER
M52 LB ERR B KR BB
HEE -

RO N FER - & M7
Rz ERBRERERT N -

RZE—WNWF=ZA=+—HBE_-F
—hRFE=A=1+—"H AEBZRE
MEREPRAFESHZER Y0
T~

NREBEBEZBRDEENM

Fair value

as at

31 March

Level 3 2015
AFE

R=ZF—HF

¥®¥=% =A=+-—H
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET
248,000 248,000
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17.Investment Properties (continueq)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties (Continued)

17. REWZE &)

SEREVENDFEHFE (&

Fair value
as at
31 March
Level 3 2014
DHER
—T-mF
E=% =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Commercial property units located in NRBEBZEEMEEN
Hong Kong 218,000 218,000

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment property was the price per square foot, which was
HK$20,763 (2014: HK$18,305) per square foot. An increase
in the price per square foot used would result in an increase
in fair value measurement of the investment property, and vice
versa.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=+—HLFE
- ) kY
18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. ¥ -BERRE

Furniture,
Plant fixtures

Leasehold Factory and and Moulds Motor  Construction

land Buildings buildings  machinery  equipment and tools vehicles in progress Total

BERE HKH 2E

HELH BF  IBNE Rz k%% KARIA RE  HBIR &t

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT FET T FAET T FAET TET FAET FET
(Note a) (Note a)

(Hita) (Hita)

COST RAE
At 1 April 2013 R-B-=£MmE-A 9,615 4,374 192,351 392,047 168,516 29,160 1,432 = 807,495
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - (785) (1,863) (375) 2 (65) - (3,090)
Additions RE - - - 7,528 7,59 5,004 923 = 21,051
Disposals/wite-off HE/ ik - - - (7,088) (1,594) &) (162) S (8,847)
At 31 March 2014 and R-Z-EE=A
1 April 2014 =+-HAREA-A 9,615 4374 191,566 390,624 174,143 34,159 12,128 S 816,609
Exchange adjustments MHERE - - - (370) (1,520) (31) (324) = (2,245)
Additions RE - - - 12,974 14,522 4,537 2,925 27 34,985
Disposals/write-off HE /K - - - (3,246) (1,662) (47) (4,329) = (9,284)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1%
=Zf=t-8 9,615 4,374 191,566 399,982 185,483 38,618 10,400 27 840,065
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 April 2013 R-B-=£MmF-A 253 4374 51,863 231,865 92,318 22,524 7,021 = 410,218
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - 82) (1,513) (307) 2 (58) - (1,962)
Provided for the year TEERE 11 = 7,715 39,351 25,101 4,636 1,734 = 78,548
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /MRS
write-off = = = (6,176) (1,559) 6] (162) = (7,900)
At 31 March 2014 and RZE-E%E=A
1 April 2014 =+-AKmA—-A 264 4,374 59,496 263,527 115,553 27,155 8,535 = 478,904
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - (1) (385) (1,528) (22) (208) - (2,154)
Provided for the year TEERE 11 = 7,661 33,631 24,205 4,547 1,477 = 71,5652
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /MRS
write-off = = = (3,118 (1,647) @ 3737) = (8,549)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1%
=Zf=t-8 275 4,374 67,146 293,655 136,603 31,633 6,067 = 539,753
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1f
ZA=t+-8 9,340 = 124,420 106,327 48,880 6,985 4333 27 300,312
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-EF
ZR=t+-8 9,351 - 132,070 127,097 58,500 7,004 3,593 337,705
Note: Bier
(@)  The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully @ MRHEEXTWHRECSTEINE E]D
depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is WAEBFR HETHRURES
situated in Hong Kong under long lease. ZREEE-
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18.

19.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

18. ¥ -BERRE »

EERBEYE - BERKE (ERTE
BRIN) 2T E TR A T O F R ELRART

Leasehold land HE LM Over the lease terms

HEBR
Buildings and factory buildings BFERIMYE 4%
Plant and machinery iR 55 5% 18 No 1 25 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE -REREZE 20 - 33 '/s%
Moulds and tools HBANTA 20 - 33 /5%
Motor vehicles A 20%
Assets pledged as security EEEKW

Leasehold land and buildings with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$9,220,000 (31 March 2014: approximately
HK$9,230,000) have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land
outside Hong Kong, under medium-term lease.

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EEmA R 2 DT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets mENEE
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HFELITHWEEFNEREELD
9,220,000 T (=T —MWF=H
=+—H:499,230,000&7T) ' LA{EA
REEBERZ —RRITEERKT-

19. A HEERE

AEBZANHERBERBEUNEE
AINAF IR E 2 HE L1 -

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E—-mE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
26,394 27,104

716 721

27,110 27,825




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

20. Club Debentures

21

CARRYING VALUE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015

AREE

- =

The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. The Directors are of the opinion that no
impairment loss was identified with reference to market value.

.Available-For-Sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

#Lﬁ&ﬁ%%
FLEMEBE

Unlisted investment funds
Unlisted debt securities

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

FRBEE
MENEE

Non-current assets
Current assets

EERAZ 2 DM

e RESHEE
HE T RF=-A=+—HItFE
20. EfTfES
HK$’000
FET
RZE—=FMA—H"
—mE=A=+—H~K
—RE=A=+—H 13,866
EHRMNEMESRSFERENR
W&“ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬁﬁ°%$
RIBZLZEMSEE RELBENE
E5i8 o
1. B ERE
AHEREBRRE:
2015 2014
—E—HEF — P4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
8,840 5,901
6,340 5,658
15,180 11,559
13,563 9,217
1,617 2,342
15,180 11,559

The investments in unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt
securities are stated at fair value, which have been determined
by reference to prices provided by the counterparty financial
institution. As of 31 March 2015, the unlisted debt securities
carry interest either at fixed rates ranges from 3.5% to 5.625%
per annum (2014: 4% to 5.625% per annum) or variable rates
based on the London Interbank Offered Rate plus a margin
of 0.75% per annum in 2014. The original maturity of these
unlisted debt securities ranges from five years to eight years
(2014: from five years to eight years) with maturity date from
March 2016 up to November 2022. Disclosures of fair value
measurement are set out in note 6¢.

Annual Report 2014/2015 —&—

WERIELTREESRIFELTES
BHEBEATFEAR BEYSREE
REERELZ2E-R_T—RF=A
=+—H FLTEEEFZFIEI
& 7 F K18 E B F 53.5%%E5.625%
(2014 T BA%ES.625% ) N HEE R

—FLUZBFIRFTE - R EER
ﬁH%ﬁE<MBmﬂ>M%ﬁé$¢
B0.75% - WE I FTEBEHFZRE
HEHBRAFEN\FLE :ﬁ—mir
MAFZENTE) HHER-_ZT—RF
—ARE-E-_—_F+— A -QFER
SR FE6CH EE -

NEE=F—EEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

22.

23.

Financial Assets Designated at
FVTPL

FLEMIREES

Unlisted investment funds

These represent unlisted investment funds redeemable or
being disposable at the Directors’ discretion with the total
principal amounts of HK$3,635,000 (2014: HK$5,480,000).
As at 31 March 2015, the Directors intended to hold these
investments at least in the coming twelve months from the end
of the reporting period and therefore they are classified as non-
current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at

the end of each reporting period. Disclosures of the fair value
measurement are set out in note 6c¢.

Inventories

Raw materials R
Work in progress &M
Finished goods BLRK o
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B

e ISR E E R

ZE_E-hF=A=+—HILFE

2. ZRERBELNFEFEZ

MBEE

2015 2014
—F-AF —F0OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
3,635 5,480

B HEEATERNEENIELT
BERES HA$ S5 A3635000%
7T (ZZ— P04 : 5,480,000/ 7 ) ° A
—E-RF=-A=t+—H EEEEH
BEZEREEZHAREBERETED
REFT_ER HRSERESERIER
BEE-

tiemTARSEREMEREIA

23. FE

RF{EFE - R FEFERH E6cH
E;g o

2015 2014

— —ZT—mEF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

41,799 33,110

22,247 14,453

39,678 52,687

103,724 100,250




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #&3R & ZMisT
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HIFE
24.Trade Receivables and Bills 24, EIWE SRR EWE
Receivable/Other Receivables B HibEWERRR
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables U E Z R 398,772 379,585
Bills receivable JE U 2 4% 1,261 636
400,033 380,221
Other receivables (Note) Hib W BRIk (W) 99,244 60,878
Total trade and other receivables EWE SRR X
E {th B IR BR SR AR %R 499,277 441,099

Note: As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s other receivables mainly
include value added tax recoverable of HK$88,298,000 (2014:
HK$51,886,000), which will be repayable within one year.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills
receivable by age, presented based on the invoice date which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates.

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 1208
Over 120 days BiE120H

Wit R—FE—HREF=A=+—8"
AEENHEMEREREEZERRE
88,298,000 7t (ZF — M :
51,886,000/ 7T ) 2 A] Ui [B] 3% (& ¢
AR —FRULE -

AT RERE ZER L ERERIAE
SEMRER ZREDIT RO RZE

HEEERAE-
2015 2014
—E-5F —E—mOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
366,527 361,090
30,380 19,128
3,126 3
400,033 380,221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

24. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of Directors, the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired were of good credit quality based on good
repayment history at the end of the reporting period and no
impairment is necessary for these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$48,929,000 (2014: HK$30,048,000) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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e

BHE_Z-—HhF=A=1+—HILFE

24,

B wE W

EWRE S ,\ R EUWE
E/E s LI&;E\E/TA(/‘E

AERE R AREERHEIOX - RIEZEMR
EFEPH ARBECHEEERR
ZIEEERLREPAEEERR
AN REE 2 E S K Pt 2 5%
B EEPEERKAZLHE K&
ZREWEFERANEENHERR
TRZEEERARANE UBTERE
WE 5 IR ATUE N - R ¥R E HIEE R
H EERR ENNRELRIT &
WESEREEERRT  WERBESK
REE B AFERZERTBRAE-

REBEWE ZERERDIEREE
A 348,929,000 T (ZE— M & :
30,048,000/ 7T ) 2 FE Y BR 3K - 32 AR K
RiERHESHELEELRES
BRE REEERWRIEANE [
FrE BRI IEE IR E o AN E I &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

24. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

Age of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by: 560 HA :
Overdue 0 — 90 days #1890 — 90H
Overdue 91 — 120 days #8991 - 120H

The Group performed assessment on individual trade
receivable balance and recognised allowance on specific
balance when necessary. In the opinion of the Directors, there
was no allowance for doubtful debts required at the end of
both reporting periods.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade and other
receivables and bills receivable. The Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the Directors assessed that these
balances will be recovered base on their settlement records.

ZHRAREWE
L{th FEUNBR X ()

EEMEYEREEEKE S RIE

e

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mOF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
48,725 30,048
204 =
48,929 30,048

AEBFEBERKEZRRGERR
TR BERSEERERRE -EF
R NMERS REEREALEFIE
RERR -

AEEIWEILE 5 K H B W ER KK
W RIBER B T E M - EFERNW
RRCE R SRR AR A E - BUR
£5 B30 8 5A 5% 5 BR AF R E B 1R
fhae
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

25.Time Deposits and Deposits
Placed with Banks and Financial
Institutions/Bank Balances and

e ISR E F R

BHE_Z-hF=A=1+—HILFE

25. EFE RN EFERBITRE
RS 7R RITHEE
TEF

Cash
(@) Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and (a) TEHERMNERBITRSEMEE
financial institutions ZEXR
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Time deposits placed with banks ERIEITZ EHEFER 197,307 274,100
Deposits placed with financial FREBEE TR
institutions - 6,661
197,307 280,761

Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions carry fixed interest rates with
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.5%

(2014: 0.01% to 3.15%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

25.

26.

Time Deposits and Deposits
Placed with Banks and Financial
Institutions/Bank Balances and
Cash (continveq)

(b) Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from approximately nil to 0.35% (2014: nil to 0.35%) per
annum.

Trade Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables by age
based on the invoice date:

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H
Over 120 days HBiB120H

r e R E M

Eﬁzé_ A= NG

25. ERERMERBTRS
BB FRIRITHER

ﬁnnﬁ (/,Zg)

(b) RITEFNRE
RITHEHFRMSHE X

IS
BHEZ0.35% (:2*@@2

Z0.35%) °

26. BB Z IR

REZZEAHZIZENEZRRLZ

BRES DTN T ¢
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mOF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
240,360 281,628
19,507 14,718
2,726 5,440
262,593 301,786
Annual Report 2014/2015 —E—EZ_F—HFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E FHE

I
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—AF=A=+—HILFE
P A =%
27.Secured Bank Loans 27. BEFRITER
2015 2014
—E-EHE —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans, BEMEBITER
with carrying amount repayable: NERZREME:
Within one year —F R 13,493 26,379
More than one year, but not exceeding ZHR—F BT BBEMRT
two years 5,124 13,493
More than two years, but not exceeding LHRME - BTEBBAF
five years 15,372 15,372
More than five years HEFUE 31,161 36,285
65,150 91,529
Carrying amount of bank loans that are B RER R ESRERIENGE
not repayable within one year from the R—FANEERITERZ
end of the reporting period but contain FEE(GERRBSEE)
a repayment on demand clause (shown
under current liabilities) 12,948 20,349
78,098 111,878
Less: Amount due within one year shown BIERARBEREZ
under current liabilities —FNERESHE (26,441) (46,728)
Amount due after one year —FRIENERSE 51,657 65,150

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus a range of 0.8% to 2.75% (2014: 1-month
HIBOR + 0.8% to 2.75%) per annum, which ranging from
1.04% to 2.99% (2014: 1.00% to 2.96%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

For the year ended 31 March 2015

28. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 April 2013

Release of deferred tax liability
arising on gain on revaluation
of the investment property on
disposal previously charged to
other comprehensive income

(Credit) charge to profit or loss

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014

Release upon payment of dividends
(Credit) charge to profit or loss

At 31 March 2015

R-E—=FMNAE—H

REMERHERFA
Hoth 2 T N ek B A B
FTEE £ 2 BN IR ST
HIEE E R &

RBzE (E8E) MR

RZE—F
ZA=+—HkK
—E-mFEMA—H

AR B 0

RIEZEE (BE) 1R

R-ZE—HEF
=A=+—8H

re MRS EM
BHE_T-—RF=A=+—HILFE
28. EELEBEE R
THRAFERZFERME THERALZ
TEREHEEBUREP 2 E
Withholding
tax on
distributable
Fair value  Accelerated profit of
changes of tax  subsidiaries
property  depreciation in PRC Total
BAKERR
L/ES A7 EEFZ
DNFERE MEBBRE BB X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
5,832 6,333 5,554 17,719
(5,346) = - (5,346)
(486) 24 512 50
- 6,357 6,066 12,423
- - (500) (500)
- (25) 1,041 1,016
- 6,332 6,607 12,939

Prior to the disposal of the investment property in PRC as
described in note 12, the Group recognised deferred tax
liability on change in fair value of the investment property

in PRC taking into account the land appreciation tax and

enterprise income tax payable upon sale of the investment

property. The deferred tax liability was released in the year
ended 31 March 2014 upon the disposal.

Rz BT 128 MR R BB IR E Y %
HER  NEBRBERREYFETEN
HREERAFHERERER YEEE
AHEYMERFTN L MIBER LD
ERER -R_T—WF=A=+—H
HEE EEFHBRECREERE

i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE
28. Deferred Tax Liabilities continueq) 28. ELEMEREE )
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from AEEVERERARBEEBEEES
tax losses of HK$93,114,000 (2014: HK$66,873,000) due MEEHIEEE REREERE
to the unpredictability of future project streams. Included 7 2093,114,0008 L (ZF — Y F :
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately 66,873,000/ 70 ) < A RIEH RIE- B
HK$87,019,000 (2014: HK$61,171,000) that will expire in &7 K T SR 5 TR B 18 1M 4987,019,000
2019 (2014: expiring in 2018). Other losses may be carried B (ZZE—UF :61,171,000% T)
forward indefinitely. EE BR-E-NAFIH(ZF—O
FHERZT—/N\FHH) -HMEE
AR HAAE 8 o
29. Share Capital 29. R 7

2015 & 2014 2015 & 2014
—R-HFRk ZE-IFRK

—E-mE —F-mF
Number of
shares HK$'000
R EE FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each f& AE{E0.10E T 2 LB
Authorised: EERA
At beginning and end of the year REVRF 600,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid BT RBERAE
At beginning and end of the year REN) R F 4 335,432,520 33,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements AR & BA # 3R &5 & Ffi &%

For the year ended 31 March 2015

30. Share Option Scheme 30. BB RESTEl

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees,
the Directors and employees of the Company may, at the
discretion of the Directors, be granted options (the “Options”)
to subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Shares”) at a
price determined by its Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted during the year under the
Scheme.

BEARTR-_ZE——FNANBAE
Mz EARERTE ([HERERTEI]) - &
ARAEEEAMNEREBERETAA
AlZEENEEURBARR 2D
REEHESSET  ETSERT
=ERzESE: (RORBLORXLE
RiEEH(AAXSA)ZWME (M
BRXFTEHBRERAAMAABLE) : (HRHR
EHARTCEREZEZAITAAISAZ
FHUTHE (LA R FT ARERFTEE A
AE) 5 R (A% 1D E{E

WRAEARRBBIRIASIE - ITERE
BRI BET RN BRETFEE
RRBRER AR D TR Z210%:
RBETRDBETENALTTFES
RATREFEEE BEITRAZ1% -

BEREGENESAERYSEARE
PRiEEME BEFH10F - BR T 2BR
BUERE TR28RARE  AM1E
TUERR LB E 2 R E - B HEA
AIBER T - (e R EIBIRERNE B
it EEEAIER T MSEN R HBR
R BE10F-

BRET SN F AL ER TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015

31.Related Party Disclosures

(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the

related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company
Allan Investment Company Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
Income Village Limited
Fair Pacific Limited

Director of the Company
Mr. Cheung Pui

BEEZRAT
DRIEBARAA]

GEN ) NG
ffEHEABR AR
BEBAR AR

DNAESE
RIBEL
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N.EEREAIRG ZHKE

(@ AEEENZKENEERAXTT

SIBEBEEAL:
2015
—E-hF
HK$°000
FET

900

204
984

75

2014
—E—mOF
HK$ 000
FET

900

204
984

567




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

31.Related Party Disclosures (continuea)

Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the
related parties are as follows: (Continueq)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and a director of the
Company which are included in note 32 and fall due as

follows:

Immediate holding company HEERAF
Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERFNH
Fellow subsidiaries EEX =R
Within one year —FA

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERFNR
Director of the Company ATES

Within one year —FA

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERFNR

Certain Directors have controls in Allan Investment
Company Limited, Income Village Limited and Fair Pacific
Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director of the Company.

mEMBERE SN

BE-_ET—RAFE=A=1+—HIFE

NEHEFEEAIRZZHE
(&)

(@ AEBENHENEEHEITT
SIBREANL: (&)

RHmEFEGRK  NEBEE
BERAR RREMBRER—
NEBFZAAHENLEHRE
(EBREAEMES2) MBS REF
REBNHEEAENT

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
900 900

900 1,800
1,800 2,700
1,188 1,188
204 1,392
1,392 2,580

- 338

- 338

MOEFRTRVEBRAA]
FEARARNEBEBARAFTAE
ZHE o RBEERARAZE
$O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

31.Related Party Disclosures (continuea)

(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel, being
the Directors, during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits SR =
Post employment benefits RIKEF

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals, market trends and conditions
with a view to retain and motivate executives.

32. Operating Leases

N.EEREAIRG ZHKE

(%)
b) RFATBEEAEZME A
EEm:
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
13,883 13,669
712 698
14,595 14,367

EECMeDERENEINE
BTSSR RER aFHES
elET @S BRBE RS
BASBEAEERN -

32. EEHE

The Group as lessee AEBEHEAEA
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-WmEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Minimum lease payments paid during AEEREERSHHEYE2
the year under operating leases in SEBENZH
respect of rented premises 2,179 2,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B f& 3R & = Kist

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_T—RE=A=1t—HItEE
32. Operating Leases (continued) 2. HEHE
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBBEREBA (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEFRELERE NEE 2 A
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- CERHENE YN REREEMNEE
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: ZAEPEITR
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 2,103 2,441
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERFNR 1,132 3,235
3,235 5,676
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented EEREMNFELEYERS 2HEE -
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging HEFHR 2= (ZF—0F:
from one to three years (2014: three to five years) and rentals —FERF)HRBEAREESRRNE
are fixed throughout the lease period. EEMHE -
The Group as lessor AEBEREBAA
Property rental income earned during the year was F R EME WA 54,964,000 7T
HK$4,964,000 (2014: HK$5,341,000). The property held has (ZZ—/M4%:5341,00087T) A
committed tenants for the next two years (2014: two years). RSB P I E & FR R KM F 4

(ZZE—F WF) °

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBEFELERE  NEBEEBEF M5
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: THARRFEHREELAEL:

2015 2014

—E-HF —F-mE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 3,718 4,730

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERFNRN 1,340 2,027

5,058 6,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & BA# 8 &5 & M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE
33. Capital Commitments 33. EAREE
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BN 2B R EPE
provided in the consolidated financial B R GEETTEREER
statements in respect of: BHENA
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEWE WEIEZEB
equipment 2,900 6,401
Capital expenditure authorised but not EREBRREDNZ
contracted for in respect of acquisition of BEARFESREBEME-
property, plant and equipment 5 5= M 5% 41,401 74,971
44,301 81,372
34.Pledge of Assets 34. EEEKHF

35.

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land under finance
lease, building and investment property having carrying
amounts of HK$9,220,000 (2014: HK$9,230,000) and
HK$248,000,000 (2014: HK$218,000,000) respectively as
at 31 March 2015 to secure general banking facilities and
mortgage loan granted to the Group.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

35. Retirement Benefits Schemes
(Continued)

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

Number of completed years of service

5¢ R BR 7% F 5B

Not more than 5 years PR
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRHh
More than 10 years ZN+

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2014 and 2015, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment in
Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees are
5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The maximum
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$30,000 per
month. The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
Group’s contributions and accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group but the benefits are required
by law to be presented until the retirement age of 65.

BAZI10F

BB

35. RIKBRIFTE (#)

SMAEEFEZEE  FARKAA
BZ5% ° B ERSARE AT EFIRETE
FRABREBHERZ R

Rate of
contribution

HRE

5%
7.5%
10%

2MABRTERTEZEE  AI2F
ZEMBARIAEEBH ZERERE
HERF S BELMFHRIEIF EE
1 ZH30%ZE0%E E 2 N - &
BN R BE R BB R = R AT - A
Z N HERE TRU - MIEEFERMS
Wz BRMBERERZHR BT
—ARZFE-—RHF=ZA=+—HI1"
REBRAERZRERAIENR A
BREMEFER-

BB EI AT B18E65mZER
ERRLVOBZEER N - AEEKE
BEFHREBEEEZEBAEIELS%
ZHEF-RBRME  BEAABLRA
£ A30,000/8 7T - T ERAEE Z AR
BER - EEH RS AER 2 IHPHK
HERERT R - EREED - BRI =
IR B 2= R IKF #R655% /7 ] SEEL °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & I EE Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2015  E—E—AF=A=1+—HLFE

35. RIKBRIFTE (#)

35. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in the PRC also
contributed to a local municipal government retirement scheme
for all qualified employees in the PRC. The employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

36. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015
and 2014, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

36. AAFZETEMBER A

RZE—FRHER_ZT—NFE=HA
=+—H ARRIZE2EMBRARFE

Company, are as follows:

Place of

incorporation
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations
WEARAE SR LREREEE Y
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong
TREFHEFERLA £

Allan International Limited*

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERENESR /BB

Hong Kong/PRC

SR IREERRAAF B/ HE
Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong
SREBHERLA EA
Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong
ShRnARRERATF Bt
SRIXMR (BM)BRAF PRC*
HE
BEIR (BB)ERAR PRC
hE
Artreal Manufactory Limited Hong Kong
BEEIXARAA &t

PURNE

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital

ERTRMERAREMER

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$10 each

100k B IR B 107 7T 2 & 8 ik )50,000
REREE10ET . ERZEELRS

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
55,000 8 REE1E T2 &Rk

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100RBREEIET 2 & BR

3,005 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
3,005l BREBE TR 2 LR

270,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each
270,000/ R EE10E T2 &R

Registered capital of USD42,000,000
7t & 242,000,000% 7T

Registered capital of HK$75,000,000
&1 & 775,000,000/ 7T

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
SRERETE T ERR

Annual Report 2014/2015 —&—

Principal activities

TEXEHR

Investment holding
RERK

Investment holding
REER

Manufacturing of plastic
injection moulds
GEERTEEA

Property holding and trading
of household electrical
appliances

RFENEREHEREESR

Inactive

EEEG

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EEZFEZER
BBRTH

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EEREESRR
BREH

Trading of household

electrical appliances
REXEER

NEE=—HEEH
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE—Z—

36. X AT ZEEHBATF

36. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued) (%)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations  capital or registered capital Principal activities
WEARAE EMRIREL EEHY ERTRERIREARZIMER TEEH
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
FREXLEFRLA N B EREEIE T AR electrical appliances
Electrical Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Hong Kong IRAEIETZEER HEEK
RBRAEE /AR
Ever Sources Investment Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
EXREBRDA 0 100RBREBIBT EER RENE
Global Express (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
i (B8)BERAA EA REREEVET ERK REER
Good Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
EEREBRAT EB 1REEIBTZ SRR RERR
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$ 1 Trading of household
REBERRA %5 1REEIE T LBk electrical appliances
BHREER
ESHEESERnERATA PRC? Registered capital of HK$2,800,000 Manufacturing and trading
(Note) (#7:2) F 1 & 42,800,000 7T of household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
ERBEREESRR
BREH
BT REBEREEERAT PRC? Registered capital of HK$100,000,000  Manufacturing of household
F 1 & 7<100,000,0007% & electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EERESBREBEH
HETERE (BN BRAH PRC? Registered capital of USD3,500,000 Manufacturing and trading
F 1 & 743,500,000% 7T of household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
ERBEREESRR
BREH
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
EREELEERAA &% 100 EREEE T2 LB electrical appliances
BHREER
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HItFE

36. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 36. XA ZEEMBE AT

(Continued) (%)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations  capital or registered capital Principal activities
WEARAE EMAIREL EEHY ERTRERIREARZIMER TEEH
New Prestige Investments Limited* Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Property investment
£ 1REEIET EER REME
Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and  Property holding
Metalwares Factory Limited &% 54,000 non-voting deferred shares of ~ &M%
B (RR)EBASBERAA HK$10 each

100M% SR EE 1078 7o 2 T 8 ik % 54,000
BEREEI0E L EREEETREN

Progress Associates Limited * British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Investment in securities
Hong Kong 1REEIET 2 SRR BHEE
RBRLBS/BR
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 ordinary shares of USD1 each Investment holding
Hong Kong JREEIE T LBk BREER
KBRS/ BR
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Inactive
EREXFHEFRAF BB 100RBREEI0E T2 EBK RS
Well Sincere Investment Limited* Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
BABRERBAR G XREREENETL. . EBR REER
> Direct subsidiaries * BEEMRB AT
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises E 2EIHBELE
Note: The subsidiary, HF5 151 E R G B R A F], was dissoluted in B HBATNEREESRSRERAT
the current year. ERFRERES-
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of REFER - B A B ER T EREE
the year. o
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Financial Summary

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the five years ended 31 March 2015.

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

=3

BR % A A
IR

AREE i

MBHE

TRARAEEBE_T-—HF=-A=+—

BiEhEFEZEE BENBERE-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1T-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF —ZZT—WmF =ZT—= —E-—F ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FEr FHET FHET
1,946,003 2,015,405 2,356,362 2,416,920 2,220,511
85,933 105,319 133,130 153,451 199,631
(15,453) (21,862) (24,304) (26,314) (38,400)
70,480 83,457 108,826 127,137 161,231

At 31 March

R=BA=+—8H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —ZE-NF ZE-=F =ZE-—=F ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr FET
1,643,831 1,726,787 1,755,339 1,780,232 1,380,190
568,376 679,621 748,811 838,494 528,249
1,075,455 1,047,166 1,006,528 941,738 851,941

128 Allan International Holdings Limited S & BB £ @A R A 7






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Cover Back

